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MINUTES OF MEETING 

HEMINGWAY POINT 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 A telephone conference meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Hemingway 

Point Community Development District was held on Wednesday, August 26, 2020 at 2:00 

p.m.  It is being held in accordance with the Office of the Governor, Executive Orders 

authorizing the use of communications media technology, the Board of Supervisors and 

members of the public may attend and participate in the meeting utilizing the call-in 

information 1-872-240-3412, Access Code: 156-753-213. 

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 

Anthony Pellicano Chairman (via teleconference) 
Russell Brick Vice Chairman (via teleconference) 
Cheryll Angell Assistant Secretary (via teleconference) 
Carlos Suarez Assistant Secretary (via teleconference) 
Osmay Torres Assistant Secretary (via teleconference) 
 
 
Also present were: 

 
 Paul Winkeljohn District Manager (via teleconference) 

Scott Cochran District Counsel (via teleconference) 
Kevin Wimberley  DML (by phone) 
 

 
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 
 Mr. Winkeljohn called the meeting to order and called roll.    

  

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the 
June 18, 2020 and July 22, 2020 
Meetings  

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  The minutes from the June and July meetings have been 

circulated, we took the changes for the June one, but my staff just wanted them both 

reapproved today if they’re in order.  Is there a motion to approve both or any questions or 

changes? 
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On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Pellicano with 
all in favor, the Minutes of the June 18, 2020 and July 22, 
2020 Meetings were approved. 

 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Adopt the 

Fiscal Year 2021 Budget 
A. Motion to Open the Public Hearing 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  As you guys know, we set our public hearing to adopt the final 

version of the District assessment and budget for today.  If it’s ok with the Board, we can 

open the public hearing by motion please. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Torres with all 
in favor, opening the Public Hearing was approved. 

 
 

B. Public Comment and Discussion 
C. Consideration of Resolution #2020-04 Annual Appropriation Resolution 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  We are now in the public comment and discussion period of our 

public hearing for adopting the 2021 budget.  Just a little bit of overview and background, 

as you know in the spring, we determined that the assessment level would not need to be 

increased this year, and that the prior year assessment was sufficient to maintain the 

current level of maintenance and standards.  With the affect of that, the budget to 

accompany it does not change very much, we did take a few corrections from the prior 

year, shifting a few dollars where we knew they were going, we’ve established what the 

tree trimming costs, we’ve established what we’re spending on pressure washing and we 

still have what we always try to shoot for which is some discretionary funds to accomplish 

miscellaneous repairs, like we’ve been doing to the pool lately.  So, the bottom line for you 

all as residents is there’s no change to your assessment in terms of the prior year, and the 

second part is the budget that accompanies it can be altered throughout the year as 

directed by the Board as projects or service changes come about.  If there are any 

questions or comments, we can take them, and resolution #2020-04 is before you to adopt 

that assessment and the accompanying budget. 

 Mr. Torres:  The assessment is the same and the planned budget is pretty much 

the same. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes. 
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 Mr. Torres:  Ok, good. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Are there any other questions?  Then a motion to approve 

resolution #2020-04 would be appreciated. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Suarez with all in 
favor, Resolution #2020-04 the Annual Appropriation Resolution 
was approved. 

 
 

D. Consideration of Resolution #2020-05 Levy of Non Ad Valorem 
Assessments 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Resolution #2020-05 is the accompanying resolution for our budget 

process which places the assessment on the county tax roll, and we know that’s the best 

way to collect money, and I would strongly recommend approval by motion. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Brick seconded by Ms. Angell with all in 
favor, Resolution #2020-05 levy of Non Ad Valorem 
Assessments was approved. 

 
E. Motion to Close Public Hearing 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  A motion to close the public hearing would now be in order. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Suarez with all in 
favor, closing the Public Hearing was approved. 

 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  We do have Kevin on the line, and Kevin handles all of our 

security and fencing at the pool, and so to make better use of his time I’d like to just go 

through the most recent incidents with the gate and work back to any questions you have 

that he can answer directly.  Presently it looks like the escape hatch, if you will, on the 

panic bar, on the back gate is frozen and needs to be replaced, and also the gate itself 

isn’t structurally designed correctly.  Basically, if you wiggle one, or the other post, with 

some help you can open that gate, so Kevin has dealt with this many times, and Kevin 

you want to tells us what you think we ought to do? 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Yes, sure, good afternoon all.  So, yes per Paul’s request I 

passed by this morning and basically it just needs to get replaced basically.  I provided 
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photos, but it’s basically covered with rust and when it’s activated and pushed in, it’s 

remaining in, so that piece needs to be replaced.  I mean, there’s two things, that needs 

to be replaced and two, the way that pedestrian gate was manufactured which is pretty 

typical of what I come across, is you basically just have two posts on each side, one 

supporting the hinges, and one supporting the striker per se, on the locked gate side.  

When they’re designed like that, you don’t have any, the structure is loose on both sides, 

so from a combination of multiple jumps and people manipulating the gate, basically 

those two posts can be manipulated, as Paul stated.  What we do on any new 

installations that I have manufactured or any repairs that we do for something like this 

when there’s a problem is, we create a, think of it as a U or a structural piece that goes 

between the two posts and connects the two, so it increases the rigidity of it.  Basically, 

we extend up on the left and the right posts, and connect it, and think of it as a U per se. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Like an upside down U. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  So that’s what needs to be done, so it’s a combination of that. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok, so Kevin do you have a rough sense of what that might cost? 

 Mr. Wimberley:  The fabrication, let me see how much that bar is, I’m driving right 

now, I’m literally about 3 minutes out from my office, and I’ll keep it down as best as 

possible, I try to keep it down for you guys to get it done, but just off the top of my head 

probably for the welding and fabrication of that portion from the fence, it would probably 

be about $750 and then the part itself is probably about $250 somewhere around there, 

give or take, ballpark. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  But I’ll provide you a formal proposal as soon as I get into the 

office. 

 Ms. Angell:  So, he’s probably talking about $1,200 to $1,600, is that correct? 

 Mr. Wimberley: Yes, that would accommodate that, yes.   

 Mr. Pellicano:  I don’t think I’m understanding where this U is supposed to go. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Across the top. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Alright, so if you’re standing, and I’ll happily send a text message 

when I pull up the image, but over up above the picket, and we’re going to make a joint 

between the two posts on the left hand and on the right hand side.  Think of it as an 

upside down football goal post. 



August 26, 2020 Hemingway Point CDD 

- 5 - 

 Mr. Brick:  Is anybody else have a problem with the audio because I can’t hear 

him. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, Kevin you must be in a bad area, but I think I understood 

everything he said, but he has a lot of feedback also. 

 Mr. Brick:  So, the posts don’t need to be reset or anything? 

 Mr. Wimberley:  No, it’s more fabricating. 

 Mr. Brick:  So, $750 just to weld a piece of steel between two posts, is that what it 

is? 

 Mr. Wimberley:  For the most part, yes, it’s a combination of the raw metal and the 

travel to go out there with a welder and setting up, it’s more time than anything.  It’s more 

of the actual service call and the prepping and service call and the time onsite, correct. 

 Mr. Torres:  So Kevin when you finish your quote, will you have that broken down, 

how much is labor, and whatnot, or are you just going to say to do the whole job, 

because I’d be curious to see how much the labor compared to what the materials and 

stuff cost. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Sure, if you want me to break it down that way, I’ll be more than 

happy to break it down that way. 

 Mr. Torres:  Does everybody else feel like that’s a reasonable thing to ask, or is 

that too much to ask? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  No that’s fine. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  No, I don’t have a problem with it. 

 Mr. Torres:  That’s good. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and I thought the other thing Kevin could give us input on, 

he’s pulled the video every time we’ve had a report of somebody being in the pool, and 

they’re basically coming in around that area we thought was vulnerable, which is the 

equipment area, so maybe the idea is to take it to that next level and have that go all the 

up to the roof line. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  On the pool area, correct, after reviewing that video from Friday 

afternoon, it looks like yes, they’re hanging around, and it looks like one or two individuals 

went over that area and then went to the back and opened up the rear gate, and then 

they propped it open, it looked like they propped it open with something.  It’s unfortunate 
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and I expressed my feelings to Paul as well, you guys keep trying to keep these guys out, 

and they just keep finding their way in. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and that’s another conversation for later.  So, Kevin can we 

look at that and can you give us a price to do that next level of fabrication and 

installation? 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Yes, I will, I’ll have that for you. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  And if we agree to have you come out and fix the back gate 

maybe that will save some money to do both at the same time. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Absolutely, let me review that because I mean, that’s where they 

were coming in most likely around that area back there where the equipment is.  So, let 

me work on that for you and I’m going to order that crash bar regardless, I’m going to 

bring it in, so I’ll just go ahead and bring that in and I’ll have that installed as soon as I 

can get it in. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, that’s a safety issue we have to take care of. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  I mean that right now, you’re pushing it, and it just remains open, 

so you have to like bang on it to let it release. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  So, I’ll bring that in as soon as I can. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Alright, I appreciate it.  Any other questions for Kevin and 

security?  Not hearing any, thanks Kevin I appreciate your time joining us today, and we’ll 

be in regular contact as always. 

 Mr. Wimberley:  Alright, thank you have a great afternoon. 

 Mr. Torres: You too. 

  

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Moving on to staff reports, Scott and I have an update for you.  

Scott you want to give your part and if I need to, I’ll give my part. 

 

A. Attorney 
 Mr. Cochran:  Sure.  I just have to mention first of all for what he’s referring to, the 

Governor did extend the Executive Orders lifting the in person quorum requirements that 

allow us to meet using these video conferencing through the end of the month of 
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September.  So, as it stands now, our September meeting would still be able to be held in 

this manner, beyond that, it would revert back to normal unless something changes, but 

again, it’s quite possible that the Governor will extend it again, so as far as the Executive 

Orders go, that’s the status of that.  Then with respect to what Paul was referring to, we 

did receive earlier this week the documents that we had requested from the county, the 

public records request for the documents relating to the bond and the closing out of the 

bond.  They were circulated to Paul and myself and Juan Alvarez, the District engineer, 

so I know that there was included with those documents, there were some documents 

pertaining to the close out of the bond and a final inspection report with some of the 

items.  Paul is probably more aware of the specifics of how that meshes with our punch 

list, I think that we had been in communication with them about at the time, but at the 

very least we do now have the bond information that we need.  I think that’s what we 

needed, and I doubt if there’s anything else that we still need, but I just wanted to relate 

that we do have those documents now. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, and I’ll send them around for everybody to look at.  I’m trying 

to pull them up right now, and I could show them to you maybe. 

 Mr. Torres:  When was that received again? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  I got it yesterday or Friday. 

 Mr. Torres:  Ok, so you guys had reviewed it and figured out what you advise as 

far as the next steps for the Board? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and when I got the response, it actually caught me off 

guard because after we figured out how to ask for public records, because they put in this 

automated system, and it bounced around a little bit telling us, we appreciate your 

request, you need to send it to this department through this portal, and eventually I got it 

done and like within an hour I got all the records, and I was really shocked.   

 Mr. Torres:  Ok. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Let me pull it up really quick so I can refresh my memory.  I think 

something alarmed me, it was the date.  I keep seeing July, 2019 as the sign off dates, 

that should be very alarming to you because that was a year ago, and that was before 

they were doing the repair I think right? 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Exactly. 
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 Mr. Winkeljohn:  So, it has a list of the punch items, but I don’t know how they 

signed off that they were done.  So, I’ll send it to you guys, you’re going to have a better 

idea, and I sent it to Juan to compare it to his punchlist and that sort of thing, and I 

haven’t gotten any feedback from him, but I’ll go ahead and circulate these documents 

but of course they’re in a status of no conclusions, only under review if you don’t mind 

looking at it like that, but I’ll send it to everyone right now. 

 Mr. Torres:  And real quick when you review that, the document for the actual 

inspection that they stated was, or they claimed was done, is there a name of an actual 

county employee that does the actual walk through review if they do it that way? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, there is but I just closed the document, hold on. 

 Mr. Cochran:  Yes, the inspection report was signed off by Paul Blackwell, which 

was the individual that Paul and Juan had been in communication with, and then on the 

bond release documents, it looked like they were signed off by Raul Pino. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, he’s the head of traffic and then the assistant construction 

supervisor for public works, so two people from the public works department signed off 

on the bond. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Right so if they did the inspection and they didn’t notify us, and they 

signed off on it knowing that the stuff was still there, that’s one concern, the other one is 

that no one even set foot or reviewed anything, they just signed off on it, I guess whoever 

reviewed the docs, and at the next we’ll have recommendations? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, we’ll have Scott, Juan and myself will all get a chance to 

digest the facts, just as you outlined, and I’ll have a response, and I received them 

Monday. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  They were required to notify us, weren’t they? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  No, not us, only because of the records request. 

 Mr. Cochran:  And just for everyone’s knowledge, the bond is between the county 

and the developer, the CDD is not a party to it, we don’t really have a formal legal 

relationship or standing to this process. 

 Mr. Brick:  So, developer essentially could just like not do the work and still get 

paid? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Well, that’s why we’re on this. 
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 Mr. Cochran:  They shouldn’t be allowed to do that, the question is who has the 

rights to enforce if that’s what occurred and what I’m saying is, I don’t know that the CDD 

as a governmental entity would have standing to enforce that or say to enforce that.  I’m 

not saying they should be allowed to do something that they’re not allowed to do, the 

question is who can enforce that. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  I think that the work wasn’t done, so the work we know wasn’t 

done, whether it was or wasn’t validated by the county is really irrelevant, it’s not done 

and anyone can come and look at the punchlist and see that it’s not complete.  So, if we 

have that, the next question is who legal liability here, is it the developer, and is that who 

we have to take legal action against, or is it the county and I would prefer not the county, 

and then that means the taxpayers are basically bailing out a developer, and so that’s the 

advise that I want to know from Scott next time we meet is, who do you recommend that 

we file legal action. 

 Mr. Cochran:  I’m trying to tell you, the CDD will not have any standing to do 

anything, I think maybe you all as residents, but I’ll take a look and make sure, but I’ll 

need to talk with Paul and Juan probably to make sure exactly what the punchlist items 

are and how they relate to the CDD, but I’m not sure, I’m not confident at this point that 

the CDD as an entity would have legal recourse. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, and I put up on the shared screen, the sign off and the date 

was July 8, 2019 by Blackwell, it shows 100% street signs, 100% striping, and guardrails 

are on here, and that was one of the items listed in the bond, because the way they do 

the bond is they put a percentage of it across the numerical value of what is required to 

build for the project and so they have it all listed here, so we know that they signed off on 

things that were in disrepair or not existent, or somewhere in between, but Scott’s point 

is, this is something, me and Juan and Scott will help with, but it’s a complicated matter, 

where do you want to go, how do you want to handle it, but I sent it to everybody on your 

email so you can go through the documents, and see what other documents we might 

want to look for, if these aren’t sufficient.  That was really why I sent it to Juan to see if 

there was more to this than they sent us.  I did ask for email correspondence between 

DR Horton and the public works department, I thought that might be valuable, but they 

didn’t send that, they just sent the immediate documents they could retrieve but the 
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documents for the full request when I went through the portal and clicked the boxes of 

what I wanted haven’t been satisfied yet. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  So, the question that I have for Paul is, there’s a couple of 

questions really, and I don’t know if you can hear me with the background noise, he’s 

cutting the grass but, the issue is, again, July, 2019 which is ridiculous, and the 

interesting part to me, just looking at it briefly, the stuff that they signed off on which again 

like you mentioned, either wasn’t done, or it didn’t exist at the time when they put 100% 

on there which is totally erroneous, so that tells me right there that they didn’t do an 

inspection, so there’s no way they can justify that. So, what Scott is saying is the CDD 

really doesn’t have right now legal ramification on it, but we need to know what avenue 

the residents need to take to say the residents want to do say, an inquiry or say a class 

action lawsuit but who do we go after is the question, or both. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, so the property that they signed off on is their own in terms 

of their own responsibility, that’s why the CDD is not a part of it, it’s a county roadway and 

county functionality.  So, what I would recommend is probably a letter from the 

homeowners association which relates to the community that lists, and we could list in 

that letter, we don’t have signs, we don’t have all these things, but the attached 

documents show that you signed off on them being built, they were never here, you are 

responsible for them, put them in, and recourse with DR Horton and the county as ugly 

as this looks, it’s the county’s fault and only their fault at this point.  You’re not going to 

get anything from DR Horton, they’re not going to respond to something they’ve already 

gotten approval on.  So, the county owes you all these things, and they said you have 

them which you don’t. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Yes, I agree and also the issue that I have with it is, it’s almost like 

a fraud case where somebody would sign off on something without doing it, knowing that 

the stuff is not there, maybe they didn’t know it wasn’t there, they shouldn’t have signed 

off on it, so that brings up a whole separate issue with the county which isn’t surprising, 

but it seems to be the way things work here unfortunately. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Well the other attachment you have is your inspection report from 

a third party engineer, which is the District, so that kind of helps having a little separation 

in the entities, you could say look the District did an inspection, looked at these things 

that are listed, we have all of our correspondence among ourselves, and you have their 
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inspection report, so between those, and the goal at the end is to get the stuff done, and 

that will put it hopefully on a fast track that they need to get this fixed and replaced or 

repaired. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Yes, and the other issue I have with it is mostly the safety stuff that 

we had all that giant punchlist that wasn’t done that is a safety issue, so there’s a lot of 

things on there that I don’t even know how they could even approve without have that 

stuff fixed or looked at, or adjusted, or whatever it would be, but to me that just tells me 

right there that they didn’t even do a walk through or inspected anything on that punch 

list. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.  Very good.  Alright, so we’ll keep moving, anything you 

need from me to move forward with that just let me know, and if I get any more 

documents, I’ll circulate them immediately. 

 Ms. Angell:  Thank you. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  And we found out about it last February or March, that this had be 

released, and I wouldn’t be surprised that the more time that people can put between the 

inspection and the time it’s questioned, that gives them a longer length of things to blame 

it on, but the fact that it’s theirs to begin with, it eliminates that argument right away, it 

doesn’t matter you need to fix it in terms of the county. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Yes, so I hope something gets done about it. 

 Mr. Suarez:  Unfortunately, I agree with Scott, I think it’s going to come down to 

the county, and I think that unfortunately we’re going to end up paying for it in the long 

run because the county is just going to tax it, and that’s going to be the big problem with 

this whole thing, but we’ll see how it plays out. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok, very good. 

 

B. Engineer 
 There not being any, the next item followed. 
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C. CDD Manager 
1) Consideration of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Meeting Schedule 
2) Discussion of Financial Disclosure Report from the Commission on 

Ethics and Reminder to File Annual Form 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Moving on to manager’s report, the fiscal year 2021 meeting 

schedule is included.  As you know we advertise once a month for a whole year just to 

have a meeting in advance ready, and it also meets the requirements, and if have 

business we obviously conduct, if we need a special meeting we could add it, and if we 

don’t have activity we can cancel that meeting.  So, I would ask that the Board approve 

this meeting schedule assuming our time and location are still factory to you, and just one 

more point, we can change this also at any time. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Brick seconded by Mr. Suarez with all in 
favor, accepting the proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Meeting 
Schedule was approved. 

 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Item No. 2 is the financial disclosure report, I’ve gotten copies 

and evidence that everyone has filed.  The book came out a week ago, so it showed one 

that wasn’t but I believe that will go away next time.   

 

 D. Property Manager 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Tony, is anybody from the HOA joining us today? 

 Mr. Pellicano:  No, I guess I’m running dual duty. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Anything you’d like to update? 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Yes, also with that is Marlena is no longer with the property 

management company for the HOA side, she left to start some other endeavor, so there’s 

a new guy that they hired last week, and once he gets his cell phone number and stuff I’ll 

pass it around and we’ll invite him to the meetings, he’s new, he’s not new to the system 

but he’s new to the company.  I met him, he’s a nice guy.  I know last week they were 

going to send out over 6 pages of violations because they’re starting to squash people 

now, because Marlene is not here so she really wasn’t the most proactive, so the 

manager has been going around until they hired the new guy and a lot of people are 

going to start getting a lot of violation letters in the mail, so we’ll see how that goes on our 

end of it, on the HOA side, but once I get that guys permanent number, the cell phone 
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number and stuff like that, then I’ll pass it on to Paul and maybe we can invite him to the 

meetings. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Perfect.  What’s his name? 

 Mr. Pellicano:  I’ll send it to you. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  That’s fine, no problem. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  I think it’s Rick or Rich or something, but I’ll get it to you. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Very good. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Approval of Check Run Summary 
B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  The financial reports include the check run summary, and 

balance sheet and income statement.  If anybody has any questions, I can take them or a 

motion to approve.  Any questions? 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Pellicano with 
all in favor, the Check Register and the Balance Sheet and 
Income Statement were approved. 

 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors Requests and 

Audience Comments 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Any other items from the Board today?  

 Mr. Pellicano:  If everybody hasn’t figured it out, the pool furniture was delivered to 

the pool, the new pool furniture is sitting back there.  I know that those people that went 

over the fence, moved a couple of them around to use, they’re still in working order, so 

they’re still back there.  We haven’t set them up yet because, one, the pool is closed and 

two, it’s the hurricane season, so until that stuff falls through, or one or the other gets out 

of here then we’ll disperse the furniture so it doesn’t get wrecked, it’s still under the 

cabana thing there, so that’s good, we have the pool furniture.  The other thing I wanted 

to say, I know I sent Paul a request the other day to get the fire hydrants painted and the 

poles that are in front of them because they’re all chipped up, I think that’s county you 

said right? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, water and sewer handles it. 
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 Mr. Pellicano:  Ok, so can we send them a request to get that done and the one 

behind the pool, the fire hydrant sank into the ground, so it’s not safe and so it’s not 

within the code, so if the fire department has to get into that fire hydrant they can’t turn 

the valve to get in there, it sank into the ground. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Can you give me the exact address because I’ll put that into the 

511? 

 Mr. Pellicano: Yes, it’s the road on Ariel Street, it’s right behind the pool, there’s 

only one right in the middle of the street there, it sank into the ground. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok. 

 Mr. Pellicano: So, they’re not going to be able to get that open, it will be a big 

problem if they can’t open that.  They have to fix that also and raise it up. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok. 

 Mr. Pellicano: And just those grey poles, those hollow poles I sent you on the CDD 

property, we’ll have to get those cut down or whatever you want to do with them, I don’t 

know. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, those are FPL directional bore lines for what were intended 

lighting systems, which were never installed, I guess they change the plan or something 

like that, and the bores were already done.  What I will do is, what I did at the cable runs 

in front of the clubhouse, is I cut them flush but I put a waterproof box over them, so that 

if they are ever needed, they’re there and the utility or even us can access them, it’s a 

couple hundred per box probably installed, but that’s better than wondering, gee I wish I 

had the conduit at a later time. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  Ok, that’s perfectly fine, I just don’t want any kids getting impaled 

on it because it’s on that main walkway, and that sits right at knee height and I know 

some kid is going to trip on a skateboard, and so I just wanted to get a proactive 

approach on it. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Duly noted, I’m on it, I’ll get it done right away. 

 Ms. Angell:  Do you need the pole address? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:   Yes, because it’s a system that will only work if I give them an 

address of the hydrant. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok, I can tell you what the pole address is, it’s 850 SW 253rd Terrace 

in Homestead, FL  33032. 
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 Mr. Winkeljohn:  And your numbers broke up at the beginning, what was it again 

850? 

 Ms. Angell:  11850 SW 253rd. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Got it, thank you, I’ll put it into the system. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Alright, anything else? 

 Mr. Torres:  This is Ozzie, I have one, BrightView, remember you had said they 

were on it for that palm tree, any idea if they have a ballpark of when they’ll get to it? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, he called me today and found the palm and was going to 

pick it up hopefully this afternoon, if he doesn’t get it, it will be tomorrow or Friday, they 

should be able to stick it in pretty fast. 

 Mr. Torres:  Ok. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  The two different supervisors and three different staff people that 

juggled it all admitted that they screwed us up with that, and there’s no cost. 

 Ms. Torres:  It happens. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right.  Any other questions?  Go ahead Cheryll. 

 Ms. Angell:  Yes, we talked about the front entrance getting cleaned, has it been 

cleaned yet, all that black there? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  No, we were going to paint it, and try to paint it white, the surface 

so that the roof surface doesn’t bleed the black on it.  I was going to bring that back to 

you a little bit later in the year when seasonal rains slow down. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Because I don’t want to do it now and then it will be wet right 

away, but Russ is the technical advisor on that one. 

 Ms. Angell:  And we also talked about having more mulch put around? 

 Mr. Pellicano:  I talked to Melvin about that. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, and I asked him about it, you just reminded me, and he 

answered me, I believe. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  And I thought we approved that, I’m looking, just a minute. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  I think we approved it last month, but it just hasn’t gotten done yet. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok, I just wanted to know if he did it, that’s all. 
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 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, I gave him the go ahead on the mulch and I also wanted to 

wait until probably the end of August into the middle of September for rains, because if 

you put the mulch in it will just get washed away, and to time it when we go to our winter 

flowers so they’re done at the same time, I just refreshed my own memory when I looked 

at my email. 

 Ms. Angell:  Ok, thank you. 

 Mr. Pellicano:  How much longer do you want to wait to paint the building? 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Usually into September when we see the tropical shift, when you 

don’t have 20 named storms out there, that’s usually a good sign that you’re in the fall, 

but I usually like to wait right around late September or beginning of October for pressure 

cleaning, seasonals and mulch, that’s the best bang for your buck. 

 Mr. Brick:  Well, inside where the pond is, it’s starting to look like an eyesore. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right I was on the phone with the owner of our pool company, 

who does the pool just fine, but they’ve dropped the fountain for some reason, and I don’t 

have the immediate report but I told them that they were on the verge of not having that 

work any longer. 

 Mr. Brick:  Well it sounds like they’re not going to be too upset.  Water level is also 

like a half an inch from the top. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, it’s full. 

 Mr. Brick:  And I put a new mosquito cake in there yesterday. 

 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Thank you, and I don’t know if you guys saw, they’ve been 

releasing the West Nile genetically modified mosquitoes, have you seen that, but Russ 

puts a treatment in the fountain to keep the mosquito lava under control.   

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 Mr. Winkeljohn:  Any other comments or a motion to adjourn? 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Angell seconded by Mr. Suarez with all 
in favor, the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
             
Secretary /Assistant Secretary    Chairman / Vice Chairman 
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August 24, 2020 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Hemmingway Point Community Development District 
5385 N. Nob Hill Road 
Sunrise, FL 33351 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Hemmingway Point Community 
Development District, Miami-Dade County, Florida (the “District”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. We will 
audit the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, including the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Hemmingway Point Community 
Development District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. In addition, we will examine the District’s 
compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415 Florida Statutes. This letter serves to renew our agreement and 
establish the terms and fee for the 2020 audit. 
 
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary 
information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District’s basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply 
certain limited procedures to the District’s RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
The following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures, but will not be audited:   
   
1. Management’s discussion and analysis 
2. Budgetary comparison schedule  

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in 
all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of 
the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of the District and 
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will issue a written report upon 
completion of our audit of the District’s financial statements. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion 
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-
matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the financial statements is other than unmodified, we will discuss 
the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have 
not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial statements 
and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on 
internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the 
report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. If 
during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the 
terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
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Examination Objective  

The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion as to whether the District is in compliance with Florida 
Statute 218.415 in accordance with Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Our examination will 
be conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants and will include tests of your records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express 
such an opinion. We will issue a written report upon completion of our examination of the District’s compliance. The 
report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of management, those 
charged with governance, and the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or add emphasis-of-matter or other-
matter paragraphs. If our opinion on the District’s compliance is other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with 
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the examination or are unable to form or have not formed 
an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue a report, or may withdraw from this engagement. 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial 
assistance, and related notes of the District in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under 
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are 
limited to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes services previously 
defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action 
that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all representations 
contained therein. Further, management is responsible for compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 and will provide us 
with the information required for the examination. The accuracy and completeness of such information is also 
management’s responsibility. As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and related 
notes in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These 
nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be 
conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You agree to assume all management responsibilities 
relating to the financial statements and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required 
to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements 
and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their 
issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. In addition, you will be required to make certain representations 
regarding compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 in the management representation letter. Further, you agree to 
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility 
for them. 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including evaluating and 
monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and 
regulations; and ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. 
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.  

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the 
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, 
(2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within 
the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to 
us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the 
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the financial statements taken as a whole. As part of our engagement, we may propose standard adjusting, or 
correcting journal entries to your financial statements. You are responsible for reviewing the entries and understanding 
the nature of the proposed entries and the impact they have on the financial statements. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for 
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) employees 
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or 
others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, 
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regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section 
of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and 
recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are 
also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well 
as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 

 
With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published 
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, 
we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information 
in the electronic site with the original document. 
 
Audit Procedures—General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas 
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government 
or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of abuse is 
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because 
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and 
not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statements. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, and 
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain other 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. 
We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for 
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about 
your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; 
and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards. 
 
Audit Procedures—Internal Controls 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the District and its environment, including internal control, sufficient 
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of 
further audit procedures.  Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we 
consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary 
to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance 
internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and 
Government Auditing Standards.   
 
Audit Procedures—Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, 
agreements, and grants, if applicable. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards.  
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Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected 
by us for testing. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Grau & Associates and constitutes confidential 
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will 
be made available upon request and in a timely manner to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal 
agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review 
of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. 
If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Grau & Associates 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned 
parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including 
other governmental agencies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that various documents 
reviewed or produced during the conduct of the audit may be public records under Florida law.  The District agrees to 
notify Grau & Associates of any public record request it receives that involves audit documentation. 
 
Furthermore, Grau & Associates shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply 
with the public records laws of the State of Florida, and specifically shall: 
 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the services or work set forth in this 
Agreement; and 

 
b. Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the District with a copy of the requested 

records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed 
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and  

 
c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 

requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
completion of the Agreement if Grau & Associates does not transfer the records to the District; and  

 
d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all public records in possession of the 

Auditor or keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service or work provided 
for in this Agreement. If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District, upon request from the District's custodian of public records, in 
a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the District. 

 
Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating to this Agreement must be made 
directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3), Florida Statutes. If notified by the District of a public records 
request for records not in the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide such 
records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time. Auditor acknowledges 
that should Auditor fail to provide the public records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to 
penalties pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes. 
 
IF GRAU & ASSOCIATES HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT:  
 
GMS-SF, LLC 
5385 N NOB HILL ROAD  
SUNRISE, FL 33351 
TELEPHONE: 954-721-8681 
 
Our fee for these services will not exceed $4,200 for the September 30, 2020 audit, unless there is a change in activity 
by the District which results in additional audit work or if additional Bonds are issued. 
 
We will complete the audit within prescribed statutory deadlines, which requires the District to submit its annual audit 
to the Auditor General no later than nine (9) months after the end of the audited fiscal year, with the understanding that 
your employees will provide information needed to perform the audit on a timely basis. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release date.  
If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) 
contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
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Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. Invoices 
will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. In accordance with 
our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed 
to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of 
termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 
unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will 
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate.    
 
We will provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any 
subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2019 peer review 
report accompanies this letter. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Hemmingway Point Community Development District and believe this 
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. 
If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it 
to us.  
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Grau & Associates 
 

 
 
 

________________________ 
Antonio J. Grau 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Hemmingway Point Community Development District. 
 
 
By: 

 

 
Title: 

 

 
Date: 
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